
NOTICE 
 

OF 
 

MEETING 

 

FLOOD LIAISON GROUP 
 

will meet on 

 
WEDNESDAY, 13TH JANUARY, 2021 

 
At 6.00 pm 

 
in the 

 
VIRTUAL MEETING - ONLINE ACCESS, YOUTUBE 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF THE FLOOD LIAISON GROUP 

 
COUNCILLORS DAVID BURFITT (HURLEY PC), MARTIN COKER, JIM COOKE 
(BISHAM PARISH COUNCIL), MIKE WILLIAMS, DAVID CANNON (CHAIRMAN), 
GERRY CLARK, EWAN LARCOMBE, GARY MUIR, IAN THOMPSON (DATCHET PC), 
MALCOLM BEER, DONNA STIMSON AND JANE PERRY (COOKHAM PARISH 
COUNCILLOR)  

 
Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: 05/01/21 

 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator If you have any questions about this meeting, 
including any opportunity for public participation, please contact Fatima Rehman (Phone: 01628 796251 

fatima.rehman@rbwm.gov.uk)  

 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section 
of the virtual meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by 
audio and/or video, you are giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be 
in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  

- 
 

2.   MINUTES 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 

  

5 - 12 
 

3.   ACTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
To confirm the actions from the previous minutes. 

  

- 
 

4.   UPDATE FROM THE ENVIRONMENT AGENCY 
 
To receive the above verbal update. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

5.   UPDATE FROM THAMES WATER 
 
To receive the above verbal update. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

6.   UPDATE FROM RBWM 
 
To receive the above verbal update. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

7.   UPDATE FROM THE PARISH COUNCILS 
 
To receive the above verbal update. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

8.   BATTLEMEAD UPDATE 
 
To receive the above report. 

  

13 - 20 
 

 
 
 



FLOOD LIAISON GROUP 
 

WEDNESDAY, 28 OCTOBER 2020 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Martin.Coker, Mike Williams, David Cannon (Chairman), 
Gerry Clark, Larcombe, Gary Muir, Thompson, Beer and Perry Martin Coker, Mike 
Williams, Ian Thompson, Malcolm Beer and Jane Perry. 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor John Baldwin, Councillor Mandy Brar and Councillor 
Gurch Singh. Laura Regazzacci, Steve Hockin, Claire Taylor and Dick Scarff (public 
speakers). 
 
Officers: Andy Carswell, Sam Franklin, Sue Fox, Fatima Rehman, Carolyn Richardson, 
Brianne Vally, Sam Franklin, James Liney and Chris Joyce. 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from David Burfitt, Councillor Stimson and Mohammed 
Mamun, who was substituted by Sue Fox. Duncan Parker sent his apologies offline. 
 
MINUTES  
 
Councillor Brar said for her attendance to be amended for meetings 23 January 2020 
and 12 August 2020. 
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 August 
2020 be approved. 
 
ACTIONS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES  
 

Action arising from 
previous minutes 

Progress 

Clerk to share details with 
Denise Kinsella. 

Completed. Email correspondence was sent to 
Simon Lavin in January 2020 by Denise Kinsella. 
 
The Chairman said Mohammed Mamun was now 
the Project Centre contact, as Simon Lavin had left 
the role. Councillor Baldwin requested for contact 
details to the Project Centre and was informed to 
contact Sue Fox or the highways inbox at 
Highways@RBWM.gov.uk.  

Brianne Vally to share PDF 
maps with Parish Councils 
and the Borough. 

Completed. Brianne Vally shared the defended 
outline that was completed in January 2020. This 
was shared with several parish councils and 
Emergency Planning team, though not covering all 
the borough. The Chairman requested this to be 
forwarded to Sue Fox, to be shared with the Project 
Centre and himself. 
 
Brianne Vally was aware of the data requests from 
Datchet Parish Council from September 2020, 
which were yet to be actioned.  

3

Agenda Item 2

mailto:Highways@RBWM.gov.uk


 
ACTION: Brianne Vally to share the PDF maps 
with Sue Fox and the Chairman. 

Brianne Vally to update the 
Group on the telemetry 
gauges. 

Completed. Brianne Vally said the request was 
regarding the Cookham telemetry gauge that had 
failed, which were repaired and were operating. 
There was a follow-up request to take gauges 
offline in the event of a flood, however this was not 
possible. She encouraged representatives from the 
parish council to take part in the Environmental 
Agency (the EA)’s research to improve the flood 
information service. 

Clerk to share information 
with Mohammed Mamun to 
review the information. 
 

Completed. Mohammed Mamun reviewed the 
information offline. 

Carolyn Richardson to 
check the progress on the 
Causeway Plan. 

Completed. Carolyn Richardson said the Causeway 
Plan was shared with parish councils in January 
2020. Due COVID-19, the adverse weather plan, 
including the flood plans, was being reviewed. 

Brianne Vally to share the 
hydraulic modelling results 
with Mohammed Mamun, 
Sue Fox and Datchet Parish 
Council. 

Brianne Vally said the final report for the hydraulic 
modelling was yet to be received. The report was 
on the hypothetical blockage of the underpass near 
Datchet golf course and the flood risk impact on the 
area. This would form a wider discussion to reduce 
flood risk in Wraysbury and Datchet. 
 
ACTION: Brianne Vally to share the hydraulic 
modelling results with Mohammed Mamun, Sue 
Fox and Datchet Parish Council. 

Brianne Vally to update on 
the development of the 
installation quality at Jubilee 
River and update at the next 
meeting. 

Completed. This was addressed in the meeting, 
following Councillor Larcombe’s concerns in the 
previous meeting. He was in contact with Simon 
Lawrence from the hydraulic and telemetry team at 
the EA. The contractors did as they were asked, 
and it was agreed to revisit the installation to ensure 
greater security and prevent unwanted damage 
going forward. The work was due to begin in the 
next 6 weeks. Councillor Larcombe said he did not 
feel improvements were agreed. 

Carolyn Richardson to 
report back to Cookham 
Parish Council regarding the 
depth boards.  

Carolyn Richardson determined that the borough 
had placed the depth boards, and it was believed 
there may be boards at Tinkers Lane depot. She 
was in conversation with the contractors to find their 
location.  
 
ACTION: Carolyn Richardson to report back to 
Cookham Parish Council regarding the depth 
boards. 

Carolyn Richardson to 
consider training 
considering social 
distancing limitations. 

Carolyn Richardson said physical training was 
unlikely to take place because of COVID-19, with 
remote options being explored. 

4



 

Sue Fox to report on the 
drainage inspections near 
Whyteladyes Lane. 

Completed. Sue Fox said the issue was to have the 
gully cleared bi-annually, which the contractors had 
now put in place. The gully was last cleaned on 14 
September 2020 and was next due for March 2021. 
Any issues in the meantime could be reported via 
the Council’s online reporting system. 

Brianne Vally to report to 
the Group if River Colne 
Brook was on the 
maintenance plan and 
assess the water in 
Coppermill Road and 
Horton. 

Completed. Brianne Vally could not recall offering to 
support in this matter. Information had been 
circulated to Members offline the maintenance 
programme online that covered the programme of 
work for the next four years. The areas covered 
were sections of the Colne Brook around 
Coppermill Road and Feathers Lane. Due to 
COVID-19, the timing of work has been amended. 
The work mentioned on the Mention program does 
not guarantee funding and the team has been 
requested to provide an update for what work has 
taken place recently.  
 
The Chairman said there was a tree removal below 
the Coppermill Road bridge and further reports of 
reed and tilled islands formed here. This was 
reported to Sarah Hale, Area Flood and Coastal 
Risk Manager, and was being dealt with.  
 
ACTION: Brianne Vally to provide an update on 
the maintenance plan on the River Colne Brook. 

Martin Coker’s 
correspondence to be 
circulated with the Group. 
 

Completed. The email correspondence was 
circulated with Members offline.  

The flood management of 
Battlemead to be placed on 
the agenda, with written 
reports to be provided in 
advance of the meeting, 
where possible. 

Completed. A written report had been requested 
from officer Anthony Hurst, Parks and Countryside 
Team Leader, and the Battlemead item would be on 
next meeting’s agenda, 13 January 2021. 

 
UPDATE FROM THE ENVIRONMENT AGENCY  
 
Brianne Vally, Environment Agency, provided and update to the Forum. The Thames 
catchment received 234% of average rainfall for October 2020. Marsh Lane, 
Maidenhead, recorded the maximum weekly total of 47mm. River flows increased on 
all sites since last week (at the time of meeting) and were well above the monthly 
average for October. Resultantly, catchments were more responsive to rainfall. The 
Met office long-range forecast predicted settled conditions with outbreaks of rain. In 
the second half of November 2020, there were predictions for frequent showers 
effecting the east of the UK.  
 
Material was circulated offline regarding the Flood Action Campaign to support the 
campaign from the 9 to 11 November 2020. The campaign was created to remind 
people of actions to take before, during and after a flood event and Brianne Vally 

5



requested Members to support the campaign. The Chairman asked how parish 
councils and the borough could support the campaign and the Group was informed 
that videos could be shared on social media, posters that could be shared with local 
communities, as well as adding the email signatures to show their support.  
 
There had been an initial internal workshop in September 2020 to discuss alternatives 
to Channel Section 1 for Datchet, Wraysbury and Old Windsor. A report was 
produced, and the next step was to have further discussions with the Chairman for 
appropriate resourcing, agree the objectives and measures and the engagement plan. 
The Chairman said he was waiting for a response from Sarah Hale to schedule a 
virtually meeting with Chris Joyce, Head of Infrastructure, Sustainability and Economic 
Growth and Ben Smith, Head of Commissioning – Infrastructure. 
 
ACTION: Brianne Vally to contact Sarah Hale to schedule a meeting with the 
Chairman, Chris Joyce and Ben Smith. 
 
The Herts and North London team covered parts of the Wraysbury area was updating 
some of the lower Colne’s hydraulic modelling that would refine the EA’s 
understanding of flood risk. This would be shared with the Group once available.  
 
Repair work was being undertaken on the Black Potts weir on the Jubilee River 
following a routine inspection that identified erosion downstream side of the weir. The 
intention was to return the flood relief channel to an operating condition by Christmas 
2020, to coincide with the wetter period between January and March 2021. It was 
possible that additional works would be carried out in 2021. 
 
James Liney, Asset Performance Team Leader, said an underwater survey took place 
in August 2020 which revealed scouring, causing erosion to the riverbed downstream 
of Black Potts weir. The issue was further complicated because of the viaducts and 
the railway above it. The underwater survey showed no damage to the weir and the 
bed of the weir, and the viaduct was unaffected at present. However, left unattended, 
erosion could work back up the weir and the viaduct. Emergency contractors were 
hired through the Environment management framework to set up the site compound in 
the coming weeks. The Jubilee River would continue to flow at 5 to 10 m3/s. Black 
Potts weir was the only part of the Jubilee River that was affected.  
 
Councillor Larcombe said in 1988, a rail bridge collapsed on that line in Wraysbury. He 
said the problem of erosion and scouring also occurred downstream of Taplow Mill 
Leat and downstream of the Taplow control structure where a stilling basin was not 
placed. He asked why erosion problems were occurring, when the system was only 
running at two-thirds of its design capacity. James Liney said there were similar size 
weirs on the River Thames with similar effects. Regular routine and reactive 
maintenance downstream of the weir along the River Thames were taking place. In 
2017, a survey highlighted the potential for the start of deterioration, and it was 
recommended to undertake an underwater survey following the heavy use of the 
structure. The follow-up strategy took place in August 2020, which was later than 
expected due to restrictions following COVID-19.  
 
Dick Scarff, Cookham Society, said there were higher flows in 2014 and asked if there 
were any scouring problems since. James Liney said there were cumulative issues 
which led to the effect on the riverbed and the structure was 19 years old. He said he 
would review this. 
 

6



ACTION: James Liney to update Dick Scarff if there was scouring problems 
since 2014 at Black Potts weir. 
 
Councillor Brar said she thought the issues were present since 2014 and asked why 
the EA was starting work now, as Cookham was at risk of flooding due to the weather. 
James Liney said the full detail of deterioration of the riverbed was only clear to the EA 
from August 2020. The 2017 survey highlighted that the riverbed needed to be 
reviewed after the next heavy rainfall event. The EA was working quickly with the 
information collected from August 2020, and he said he was unable to comment about 
the assertion about 2014. Brianne Vally said the other flood alleviation assets part of 
Maidenhead Eton and Windsor flood alleviation scheme would be operated, which 
would reduce flood risk in Cookham regardless of status of the Jubilee River.  
 
Ian Thompson, Datchet Parish Councillor, said water levels were approaching 21 
metres above ordnance datum in 2014. He said that if works were carried out, the flow 
of water would come back from the Thames River and into and up the Jubilee River. 
He said it was suggested there was a sweetening flow in the Jubilee River and asked 
where the water would go and how would it effect the works below the weir, which 
would be many metres below the surface of the water.  
 
Brianne Vally said the contractors designed a modelling simulation to assess the 
impact of velocities and turbulences on the scouring. The work to be carried out 
needed the EA’s permission and she believed the detail would be included in the 
methods of works of the application. Brianne Vally would be able to advise on the 
mitigation measures then once this was reviewed.  
 
Ian Thompson asked if the method statement could be shared with the Datchet parish 
council so that it could be reviewed, as it effected residents in the area. Brianne Vally 
said the information that was being shared as part of the Flood Risk Activity permit 
was in the public domain and could be shared, once the application was finalised and 
would share the method of work for awareness. She said Datchet would not benefit 
from the reduction in flood levels when the Jubilee River was or was not operating, 
and the works would be carried out to ensure local areas would not experience 
increased flood risk.  
 
ACTION: Brianne Vally to share the method of work with Ian Thompson. 
 
Cookham Parish Councillor Jane Perry said she was concerned about the effects of 
the EA’s decision to not dredge some of the local streams that were important in 
getting water away from properties. Her house was flooded in 2014, and since then, 
there was a band around a nearby gravel pit to protect the pit from water, which would 
prevent flood of water across the flood plain. She asked if there were any measures 
that could be taken that would reduce the risks whilst the Jubilee River was not 
functioning as it should.  
 
Brianne Vally said the flood alleviation assets in Cookham and north Maidenhead 
would take place as per operating instructions, which would help reduce flood risks. 
The Chairman said the parish council or Councillor Clark could write to Brianne Vally 
directly.  
 
Ian Thompson said a report was circulated to Members regarding the heavy downfall 
of rain that caused minor flooding in Datchet due to blockage from weed overgrowth in 

7



the Datchet Common Brook. This caused minor damage to some gardens on Penn 
Road, and he asked if the EA and Thames Water would clear the blockage.  
 
Brianne Vally said the Common Brook was not on the maintenance programme and 
she would raise this with colleagues. She said it was the riparian owners’ responsibility 
to ensure water flowed naturally and any concerns of obstruction on the natural flow 
should be removed. The points raised by Ian Thompson would form part of the wider 
discussion for Old Windsor, Datchet and Wraysbury. She advised for any immediate 
concerns to be raised through the Incident Communication Service. 
 
Denise Kinsella, Thames Water, said this could be raised with the site owners and 
could be discussed offline. Ian Thompson said he would like the flow to be sped up as 
slow flow would increase the height of the Common Brook. A flat valve was sought to 
prevent the water coming into the Brook, which would otherwise put properties at risk. 
The Chairman said this matter was being progressed by Sue Fox, Principal 
Commissioning Officer, and would be part of the wider flood alleviation risk 
discussions by the EA. 
 
ACTION: Brianne Vally to update on the clearance of the Datchet Common 
Brook blockage. 
 
Cookham Parish Councillor Martin Coker, asked for the Battlemead to remain clear, 
and whilst some wanted to allow flora and fauna to grow, it was important to allow 
water to flow. The Chairman said this was an appropriate discussion for the 
Battlemead item for the next meeting. 
 
Laura Regazzacci, Secretary of Eton Wick Waterways Group Committee, said a group 
of 15 group volunteers cleared out weeds due to the lack of assistance from Thames 
Water, the EA and other bodies. It had become an issue, causing flooding of gardens, 
cellars and loss of trees due to high levels of output from Slough sewage treatment 
works and flooding. In 2014, following floods in Slough, an increased output of sewage 
came into the village. She raised concerns about winter 2020 because of the Jubilee 
River not operating and the higher levels of water. She wanted to inform Members that 
the streams were overloaded with water and could be a flooding risk. The Chairman 
said this was a concern, the source was known, and working closely with Thames 
Water and the EA was encouraged.  
 
UPDATE FROM THAMES WATER  
 
Denise Kinsella informed the Group that in preparation for winter 2020, the planned 
maintenance programme in the Thames Valley area was taking place to ensure 
sewers that that historical issues were clear and free flowing. There were increased 
specialist teams that would deal with flow management in local areas. The team would 
ensure the tankers were working in the most productive way, as well as targeted 
planned maintenance in areas that were blockage hotspots. 
 
Councillor Brar said the Lightlands Lane sewage pumping station site information was 
due to be circulated, and the Group was informed that pump run times and rainfall 
information were sent to Dick Scarff.  
 
Malcom Beer asked if the sewage works in Ham Island, Old Windsor that took place at 
night during summer 2020 were extensions or maintenance. He said the work was 

8



disruptive, with noise, floodlights and headlights. Denise Kinsella said she would 
gather information and update after the meeting. 
 
ACTION: Denise Kinsella to send an update to Malcolm Beer on Ham Islands 
sewage work, cc’ing the clerk. 
 
UPDATE FROM RBWM  
 
Sue Fox said RBWM was continuing to work with Carolyn Richardson, Joint 
Emergency Planning Manager, and the Emergency Planning Team on the Cookham 
plan and were undertaking general preparedness with contractors for winter 2020.  
 
Councillor Larcombe said the Wraysbury drain was stagnant, with some stationary 
water. He said there was no water flowing throughout the year and it needed work 
near Feathers Lane. Fly tipping had been cleared; however, construction waste was 
blocking the drain. He asked when the drain would be cleared and if it was the 
responsibility of the lead local flood authority to ensure the water was free flowing.   
 
Sue Fox said it was the borough’s responsibility dating back to the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 and said the contractors were instructed to remove all waste 
from that section of the Wraysbury drain and would chase this. The land was 
unregistered; therefore, enforcement action could not be applied, and the Council took 
responsibility of clearing the drain.  
 
Councillor Larcombe said the ditch upstream was filled with builders’ waste and 
fenced over and was inaccessible. He said the channel was converted without 
permission, with steel fencing and a screen put over the channel, adjacent to Hyde 
End Road. Sue Fox proposed a site visit to identify the locations, which Councillor 
Larcombe agreed to, and Councillor Baldwin requested to take part. 
 
ACTION: Sue Fox to update on the clearance of the Wraysbury drain and 
partake in a site visit with Councillors Larcombe and Baldwin. 
 
UPDATE FROM THE PARISH COUNCILS  
 
Martin Coker said he undertook a site visit of Lightlands Lane sewage pumping station 
with Thames Water in the presence of residents, with a report recently sent through. 
Due to COVID-19, the Cookham Flood Committee was considering expanding its 
remit to cover all emergencies within the parish and report to bronze command.  
 
The Chairman thanked all officers, Members and attendees of the meeting. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 6.00 pm, finished at 7.02 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Subject: Battlemead Common; flood management update 
briefing for the Flood Liaison Group 

 

Reason for 
briefing note: 

The Flood Liaison Group has requested an update 

Responsible 
officer(s): 

Anthony Hurst, Parks and Countryside Manager 

Senior leader 
sponsor: 

David Scott, Head of Communities 

Chris Joyce, Head of Infrastructure, Sustainability and 
Economic Growth 

Date: 13th January 2021 

 

SUMMARY 

This note updates the Group on progress with the management of Battlemead Common, 
with particular reference to flood management issues. The note summarises work 
carried out to date, and further work that is planned over the coming year. 

 

1 BACKGROUND 

1.1 In December 2018 the Council purchased 110 acres of former farmland at White Place 
Farm, adjacent to the river Thames to the north of Maidenhead. Part of the site lies within 
Cookham Parish, and part is within Maidenhead Riverside ward. The site has since been 
named Battlemead Common. The site was purchased for the dual purposes of providing for 
public access and protecting and enhancing biodiversity: some parts of the site have been 
open to public access since August 2019, other parts of the site have been fenced off to 
protect sensitive wildlife habitats. 

 

1.2 The land at Battlemead Common includes a section of the White Brook (main river), and a 
section of the North Maidenhead Flood Bund, which forms part of the Windsor, Maidenhead 
and Eton Flood Alleviation Scheme. 

 
1.3 Following purchase of the land, the Council established a stakeholder group, the ‘Friends of 

Battlemead Common’ (FoBC) to engage with and advise the Council on management of the 
site. The most recent meeting of FoBC was held on 9th December 2020.  

 
1.4 A number of FoBC sub-groups have also been established, including a ‘White Brook sub-

group’, to advise on management of the White Brook and wider hydrological issues. The 
other sub-groups focus on Biodiversity, Access, and Information/Communication. The White 
Brook sub-group includes representatives from the Environment Agency, Maidenhead 
Waterways, Cookham Parish Council, Maidenhead Civic Society, The Cookham Society, 
Wild Maidenhead, Wild Cookham and the East Berks Ramblers. The White Brook sub-
group’s most recent meeting was held on 4th November, (minutes attached in Appendix 1 
for reference). 

 
2 KEY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 In consultation with the FoBC, a ‘Battlemead Common Masterplan’ is being produced, 
setting out how the site is to be managed, both for public access and to protect and enhance 

11

Agenda Item 8



 
 

2 

the biodiversity and landscape value of the site. The Masterplan is informed by an Ecological 
Management Plan, produced by specialist consultants Austin Foot Ecology. 

 

2.2 This Masterplan is currently being refined, and further work will be taking place over the 
coming months, in discussion with the various sub-groups, with each looking in more specific 
detail at their respective areas of remit. 

 
3 DETAILS 

3.1 The work of the FoBC White Brook sub-group includes consideration of flood management 
issues. Although some management work has already taken place to the brook, and further 
work is planned (see 5.1 below), it is recognised that a ‘Battlemead Common Hydrological 
Management Plan’ needs to be produced, to sit alongside the Ecological Management Plan 
produced by Austin Foot Ecology.  

 

3.2 The scope of the  Hydrological Management Plan will need to cover three related areas: 
biodiversity, water flow (both in-channel and out-of-channel) and flood risk. The Plan will 
need to be informed by, and dovetail with, South East Water’s ‘Asset Management Plan 
2020-2025’ (AMP7), and discussions have been held with SEW to ensure that the sub-group 
members are consulted on the SEW plan as it is developed over the coming months.  

 
3.3 In early March 2020, trial desilting and reed removal works were carried out over a 30m 

length of the White Brook; this work was carried out in partnership with Maidenhead 
Waterways, following discussion with the Environment Agency, and the issuing of the 
necessary permit. Additionally, a number of fallen trees and branches have been cleared 
from the White Brook, and from an area of wet Willow woodland in the southern part of the 
site, during the course of 2020. Some of these works have been carried out by volunteers 
from Maidenhead Waterways, and some by contractors appointed by the Council. 

 
4 RISKS 

4.1 As a riparian landowner, the Council has responsibilities relating to management of the 
White Brook. The Council as landowner also has responsibilities to ensure that the North 
Maidenhead Flood Bund is protected from any damage, and has responsibilities to protect  
and enhance the biodiversity of the site. The Battlemead Common Masterplan that is 
currently being developed, together with the Ecological Management Plan, and the 
Hydrological Management Plan that is to be commissioned, will ensure that the Council  
gives due consideration to these responsibilities.  

 
5 NEXT STEPS 

5.1 An application has recently been submitted to the Environment Agency for consent to 
undertake further de-silting works along the White Brook; the Council’s ability to undertake 
these works will be dependent on the outcome of this application, and any works will need 
to be implemented in accordance with the permit conditions. In addition, further removal of 
fallen trees and branches from the brook is currently being arranged, in partnership with 
Maidenhead Waterways. 

 

5.2 A further meeting of the FoBC White Brook sub-group will be arranged for February/March 
2021; this meeting will include further discussion of the scope of the Battlemead Common 

12



 
 

3 

Hydrological Management Plan, in light of any further information received from South East 
Water on AMP 7, as well as discussion on the next phase of White Brook de-silting works 
proposed for 2021. 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Appendix 1 
Friends of Battlemead Common                                                          

   Page 1 of 3 

 

White Brook at Battlemead Common sub-group 
 

Meeting Notes 
4th November 2020 2.00pm 

(Via Microsoft Teams) 

 
 
Attended by:  

 
Anthony Hurst (AH) RBWM (Chair) 
Ann Darracott (AD)  Maidenhead Civic Society 
Graham Scholey (GS)  Environment Agency 
Lauren Giddings (LG)  Environment Agency 
Ian Rose (IR)  Maidenhead Waterways 
Brian Clews (BC)  Wild Cookham 
Mark Hemmings (MH) Wild Maidenhead 
Dick Scarff (DS) The Cookham Society 
 

Apologies: 
 
Ian Caird (IC) Maidenhead Waterways 
Gordon Marrs (GM) East Berks Ramblers 
Jane Perry (JP) Cookham Parish Council 
 
1. Maintenance of the White Brook at Battlemead Common 
 
IR presented his paper “Update on the White Brook at Battlemead Common” which had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting, including a report on the trial desilting and reed removal carried out over a 30m 
length of the White Brook in March 2020. 
 
Measurements of water levels taken before and after the trial indicated that the water levels in the brook and 
in the wetlands followed the head level in the Thames, with no significant differences resulting from the 
desilting/reed removal. Therefore, it is not considered that the works had any adverse impact on water levels 
in the wetland; however, neither did the works have any measurable beneficial effect on the White Brook 
flow, suggesting that there are other obstructions in the White Brook impeding water flow. It was noted that 
during the test period water levels in the Thames were high, and there was a period  when the water in the 
brook was flowing in the reverse direction to the normal direction of flow. 
 
Maidenhead Waterways propose that, in order to increase flow in the White Brook, further machine clearance 
of silt and in-channel vegetation is carried out along a 3m wide central channel, extending for approximately 
80m north of the Causeway bridge and approximately 50m south of the Causeway bridge, prior to the 
beginning of March 2021 (it is recognised that this work would be subject to a further EA permit). Additionally, 
MW propose to undertake selective removal of tree trunks and branches that have fallen across the channel. 
 
GS noted that it is difficult to fully assess the impact of the March 2020 desilting  due to prevailing water levels 
in the Thames, but recognised that MW had used their best endeavours to conduct the trial as effectively as 
possible in the circumstances. Consideration should be given to the timing  of the works proposed in the new 
permit application, the possible use of herbicide as an alternative option to desilting/reed removal, and 
how/where the removed silt should best be deposited.  
 
GS also confirmed that any flood risk implications would be taken into account as part of the assessment of 
the permit application. 
 

15



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Appendix 1 
Friends of Battlemead Common                                                          

   Page 2 of 3 

 
 
2. Feedback on site meeting held with Maidenhead Waterways, Environment Agency and South 

East Water 30th October 2020 
 
LG reported that on 30th October a start-up meeting was held on site with Debbie Wilkinson form SEW and 
their consultant hydrologist from Cranfield University, Marc Naura, also attended by IR and AH. This meeting 
was part of a wider study of the White Brook and connecting watercourses that will form part of SEW’s 
Adaptive Management Plan (AMP 7) implementation project (2020-2025), setting out mitigation options 
resulting from SEW’s groundwater abstractions.  
 
Stakeholder consultations on this Plan will be undertaken over the coming weeks and months, so that options 
can be shared and developed, and this will provide opportunities for members of the sub-group to have an 
input to the AMP options, both from biodiversity and water flow perspectives. 
 
AH has passed on contact details of the sub-group members to Debbie Wilkinson, who will be co-ordinating 
the stakeholder consultation process. 
 
3. Scope of proposed Hydrological Management Plan for Battlemead Common 
 
It was noted that there was a widely-held view from the 16th September 2020 meeting of the Friends of 
Battlemead Common that a  ‘Battlemead Common Hydrological Management Plan’ should be produced, to 
sit alongside the Ecological Management Plan that has been produced by Austin Foot Ecology in discussion 
with the Group.  
 
It is considered that the Hydrological Management Plan will need to cover three broad areas: biodiversity, 
water flow (both in-channel and out-of-channel) and flood risk. However, the Plan will also need to be 
informed by and dovetail with the SEW Adaptive Management Plan, which as noted above is to be consulted 
on over the coming months. It would therefore be premature to commission the Hydrological Management 
Plan until the SEW Plan is further developed. However, it was agreed that in advance of both plans being 
produced some interventions could reasonably be carried out at Battlemead; this would include further reed 
removal and desilting of the White Brook referred to above (subject to the necessary EA permit), and also 
the removal or cutting up of fallen tree trunks currently laying in the area of Battlemead Common adjoining 
the Thames Path, to the north of the wet woodland, which may potentially form an impediment to the flow of 
flood water.  
 
AD and DS questioned whether the proposed dog-proof fencing and hedge in the East Field, and proposed 
dog-proof fencing alongside the Causeway, shown on the latest Battlemead Common Masterplan, could 
impede the flow of water in the event of flooding; AH confirmed that this point had been discussed with the 
EA and the advice received to date was that given the wide mesh of the fencing (150mm), and the general 
openness of the site, the proposed fencing and hedge would not have a significant impact on water flow. LG 
and GS confirmed that this was also their understanding. AH will discuss this further with the EA with regard 
to any necessary consents. 
 
It was noted that the aquatic fauna and groundwater surveys undertaken by AD, circulated to the sub-group 
in advance of the meeting, are likely to be of relevance to the Hydrological Management Plan, and these will 
therefore be made available as/when required. 
 
AOB:  
 
BC reported on some notable bird and damselfly sightings recorded at Battlemead Common which included; 
Great White Egret, Cetti’s Warbler, Variable Damselfly and Willow Emerald Damselfly. This information, 
together with other sightings, will also be shared with Jason Mills, who Chairs the Biodiversity sub-group.  
      

16



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Appendix 1 
Friends of Battlemead Common                                                          

   Page 3 of 3 

 
Next Meeting:   Early February 2021, exact date to be confirmed. 

17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	8 BATTLEMEAD UPDATE
	Appendix 1


